Request for Information (RFI) Questions and Responses

1. How would you like to receive responses to the Request for Information?
Answer: The State will accept responses on a compact disk (CD) or universal serial bus (USB) flash drive in Microsoft Word or in portable document format (PDF). Responses can be delivered in person or sent through the US Postal service to the following address:
Health Care and Benefits Division
100 N Park Ave Suite 320
PO Box 200130
Helena, MT 59620-0130
2. Please provide a physical address to deliver the RFI response via carrier service.
Answer: Please refer to the response for question 1.

3. Will the State accept a Word or PDF document delivered via email as a valid sole means of response to this RFI? If a physical document or media is required, is walk-in delivery to the department an acceptable alternative to Post Office delivery to the PO box?

Answer: Responses to the RFI will not be accepted via email. Please refer to the response for question 1 for valid means of delivery. 
4. Is the State willing to sign a mutual NDA prior to submitting our RFI response?
Answer: Montana law does not allow any information in a RFI to be deemed confidential. The only statute that allows confidential material to be protected is referenced in 18-4-304 Montana Code Annotated and is related to sealed proposals.
5. What is the process of redacting portions of a vendor’s response before being made public?
Answer:  Montana law does not allow any information in a RFI to be deemed confidential. The only statute that allows confidential material to be protected is referenced in 18-4-304 Montana Code Annotated and is related to sealed proposals.
6. What data from CareHere is currently being incorporated into your existing warehouse? If none, what are the future plans?
Answer: The Health Care and Benefits Division (HCBD) collects biometric and lab data from member wellness screenings and diagnosis and procedures codes from office visits. HCBD anticipates collecting lab values from non-wellness screenings in the future. Understand the current data warehouse also collects claim, eligibility, and clinical data for medical, pharmacy, vision, dental and other benefits offered through HCBD.  
7. What payroll and human resource data elements do you wish to incorporate into the data warehouse? Are these data elements currently being housed in the existing data warehouse?
Answer: Analysis of human resource data is an area we are just starting to explore. For the purpose of the RFI, we are interested in seeing what types of analyses are being conducted in the marketplace and what outcomes are being reached using a combination of human resource and health data. HCBD is interested in gaining an understanding of the experiences vendors have had with this data and what you as a vendor would recommend HCBD incorporate into the data warehouse function with regard to payroll and human resource data. In general, we are interested in using payroll and human resource data for performance management, absence management, recruiting/retention, training, and workforce planning. The State of Montana uses Oracle PeopleSoft as our central payroll and human resource processing system. The data is captured and housed in a database; however, it is not currently integrated with the health data. 

8. Please indicate what systems/vendors are in use by HCBD for payroll and human resources?

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 7.

9. What platform and/or vendor is being used for the payroll and HR Database systems that the RFI would like integrated into the new data warehouse?

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 7.

10. Please indicate / provide an example of the types of payroll and human resource data to be integrated.

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 7.

11. RFI Section 2.2.2.c describes integrating payroll and human resources data with healthcare data. What are the systems / platforms where the current payroll and HR data reside e.g. PeopleSoft, SAP, Workday, etc.?

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 7.

12. How large (describe in gigabytes/terabytes) is your payroll and human resource data base?

Answer: 225 gigabytes.

13. In Section 2.1 what is the total population of employees, dependents and growth percentages that will be covered by HCBD?

Answer: The State of Montana covers approximately 32,200 members. This includes an estimated 16,000 employees and retirees and 16,200 dependents. The HCBD is responsible for managing the State of Montana’s employee benefit program. Because HCBD provides health coverage to the employee population, we have a stable member population and do not expect to experience any growth.

14. Please confirm that this RFI for health data warehouse and analytics is for 32,000 Employees of State of Montana insured by Cigna for medical, Delta Dental for Dental, and MedImpact for Pharmacy.

Answer:  This RFI is for data warehouse and analytics for approximately 32,000 members, which includes employees, retirees, and dependents. Please understand that HCBD manages a self-funded plan that provides benefits to our employee population and Cigna, Delta Dental, and MedImpact are the vendors that process claims on behalf of HCBD. 

15. Does HBCD seek potential vendors to provide a replacement for this data warehouse with a new COTS solution or does HCBD want to outsource the enhancement and maintenance of this central data warehouse to a vendor?

Answer: HCBD has issued an RFI to gain an understanding of the software solutions available in today’s marketplace and how they would fit with our current business model. At this point in time, HCBD has not made a decision to replace our current data warehouse vendor. We have issued the RFI to gather information on other available solutions that will meet our data and reporting needs and provides HCBD the opportunity to measure our current arrangement against the marketplace. In the event the RFI process leads to an RFP, we would be looking to replace our current data warehouse solution.

16. In what formats (X12 or custom file formats) and how frequently does HCBD receive pharmacy eligibility and claims data from third party administrators and pharmacy benefit managers today?

Answer: Data from our claims and pharmacy administrators is collected as follows:
MedImpact: Bi-weekly, fixed width text file.

Cigna: Monthly; the file format has not been determined. HCBD’s previous medical claims administrator provided the file in a comma separated, double quote qualified format.

Delta Dental: Monthly, tab delimited text file.

CareHere: Monthly, pipe delimited text file.

17. Does HBCD envision getting clinical data, in the future, in standard interoperable messaging standards (such as HL7, CCD, CCR, etc) from Electronic Health Record Systems or Public Health registries or State / Community-based Health Information Exchanges?

Answer: No, HCBD does not currently collect member electronic medical record information. 

18. What standards are used for transmitting the individual data types? E.g., will the clinical data be transmitted with standard HL7 protocols like in formats such as CDA?

Answer: Please refer to the response for questions 16 and 17.

19. Please provide more information on the number of years of historical pharmacy eligibility and claims data and in what format will such data be available for integration?

Answer: In general, HCBD began centrally storing health related data (including plan eligibility data, claims, and clinical data related to medical, dental, and pharmacy) in 2004 and currently stores 25 GB of health related data. HCBD would like to incorporate historical data starting in 2008 into a new solution. The format in which data can be extracted is flexible; however, the preferred format would be a flat file pipe delimited or a comma separated. 

20. What are the parameters of the historical data warehouse? Please provide more specifics regarding the current and historical data. 

Answer: Please refer to the response for questions 19 and 25.

21. How large (describe in gigabytes/terabytes) is your current central data warehouse?  

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 19.
22. How much historical data is expected to be brought over from the existing data warehouse?
Answer: Please refer to the response for question 19.
23. How many years of history are represented by the central data warehouse in use today? How many years of historical data does the State wish to keep available online in the new data warehouse?

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 19.
24. Estimated data volumes for initial data load?
Answer: Please refer to the response for question 19.
25. Estimated data volumes for ongoing data volumes?
Answer: HCBD began using Cigna and Delta Dental to process claims in 2013 and is in the process of finalizing the data collection process. As a result, it is too early to make a determination of the exact size of the data coming from these vendors. However, using historical file sizes from similar vendors, HCBD can provide the following estimations on file size for each data file received:
		MedImpact: 15 – 18 MB
Cigna: 45 MB
Delta Dental: 4 MB
CareHere: 14 MB

26. Does the state of Montana have an estimate of the current volume of data and anticipated growth rates? 

Answer: Please refer to question 19 for current volume of data. The data warehouse currently collects the data for approximately 850,000 claims per year. This figure is expected to remain relatively stable in the future

27. Please indicate the maximum annual growth rate (describe in gigabytes/terabytes) for the health data warehouse? 

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 26.

28. Please provide more information on the types of clinical data, the source of clinical data, and the format in which clinical data is received by HCBD today.

Answer: HCBD collects procedure codes, diagnosis codes, biometric data, lab values, answers to Health Risk Assessment questionnaires, and prescription drug information. This data is provided by our claims administrators, Delta Dental, Cigna, CareHere, and MedImpact. The file formats used to transmit this data are described above in the answer to question 16. Understand HCBD administers the benefits program for its employees and will add or delete benefits from time to time.

29. Please provide more information on the number of years of historical clinical data and in what format will such data be available for integration?

Answer: Please refer to the response for questions 17 and 19.

30. Does HBCD envision getting plan eligibility and claims data from Health Benefit/Insurance Exchange?

Answer: No.

31. How many years of historical payroll and human resources data does HCBD wish to integrate into the data warehouse and in what format will such data be available for integration?

Answer: HCBD anticipates collecting payroll and human resource data back to 2008 to correlate with the historical health data. The State of Montana is flexible in the format the data can be extracted. Typical formats are CSV, XML, or flat file.

32. In a hosted environment do you want your own private cloud or is a secured shared environment acceptable?

Answer: Either solution would be acceptable as long as all applicable security requirements are met. 

33. Do you require that hosting to be in the State of Montana or is a co-location solution acceptable?

Answer: HCBD does not require the solution to be hosted in Montana and a co-location solution would be acceptable.

34. Please specify the contracting term for hosted subscription or “as-a-service” agreement and any optional extensions?

Answer: At this point in time, HCBD is in the information gathering stage to determine the availability of other solutions that would meet our data and reporting needs and if any of these solutions can improve the way we do business and manage our benefit plan.  In the event the RFI process leads to a Request for Proposal (RFP), contract terms and optional extensions will be established. By statute, HCBD is limited to contract terms that do not exceed 10 years without another RFP being issued for the services contemplated.

35. Does HCBD currently use an Enterprise Master Patient Index solution?  If yes, what solution is in use?

Answer: No.

36. Can you identify and characterize what “new data sources” might be?

Answer: HCBD uses third party administrators to process our claims. Consequently, these administrators become the source of our claims information.  Claims administration services are provided on a contract basis. When the contract term is up, new administrators may be selected to perform these services and result in a new data source for claims data. Due to the nature of this process, specifically identifying who new data sources could be in the future is not possible. HCBD may also create a new benefit that requires the addition of a new data source to the data warehouse (i.e. employee health center added in 2012).

37. Can you indicate the number of users – end users vs. and ad-hoc query users using SQL? What is the expected concurrent use of the system? Are there expected event-driven peak usage periods?

Answer: HCBD estimates between six to 10 users, with two to three of the users requiring ad-hoc query capability. At any given time, it can be expected that two to three users will be accessing the system concurrently. System usage may increase during preparation for the State of Montana’s annual change period (usually in the August/September timeframe) and for quarterly State Employee Group Benefit Advisory Council (SEGBAC) meetings.
38. Estimated number of users?
Answer: Please refer to the response for question 37.

39. Platform sizing and software licenses are potentially significant components of cost/price estimates. Approximately how many user seats does the State envision? Roughly how many concurrent users are expected at a peak time? Are there any expected event-driven peak usage periods?

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 37.

40. Does HCBD have current capabilities for or envision future capabilities for dashboards and/or other graphical presentation? 

Answer: Yes. HCBD currently receives a dashboard report to summarize plan performance. HCBD would like to continue to receive dashboard and graphic presentations of plan performance that would indicate actionable items to improve plan performance. We look forward to receiving information through the RFI on improving this process going forward.

41. Are you currently risk-adjusting your population and members today? If so are you using a third party solution or have custom developed these algorithms in-house? If third party solution used can you identify the vendor?

Answer: Yes. HCBD partners with the Montana Association of Health Care Purchasers (MAHCP) and they use Verisk DxCG to perform risk-adjusting for our population and members.

42. Are you currently risk-grouping your population and members today? If so are you currently using a risk grouping software solution or have custom developed these algorithms in-house?  If so can you identify that vendor?

Answer: Yes. HCBD partners with MAHCP and they use Verisk DxCG to perform risk-grouping for our population and members.

43. Are you currently performing Provider profiling? If so are you currently using a Provider Profiling software solution or have custom developed these algorithms in-house?  If so can you identify that vendor?

Answer: We are not currently performing provider profiling but look forward to what, if any, services are available.

44. Are you currently performing concurrent and prospective predictive modeling? If so are you currently using a predictive modeling software solution or have custom developed these models in-house?  If so can you identify that vendor?

Answer: Yes. HCBD partners with MAHCP and they use Verisk DxCG to perform predictive modeling.

45. What type of proposal evaluation criteria will you use?  Can HCBD please indicate the specific weighting and or percentage assigned to each of the criterion listed? 

Answer: HCBD has issued an RFI with the intent of gaining knowledge on the availability of health data warehouse solutions. This is solicitation for information only and evaluation criterion has not been established as responses received are not subject to scoring.

46. Is the State of Montana requesting best and final pricing with the proposal submission or will you select the top bidders for an additional round of best and final pricing?  

Answer: HCBD has issued an RFI with the intent of gathering information on the availability of other solutions that would meet our data and reporting needs. HCBD has requested pricing information as a measurement of the affordability of our requirements. 

47. The RFI mentions education and user training. Will the contractor be required to provide training in the following areas and/or any other: system use, data analysis, data privacy and security as it relates to HIPAA?

Answer: HCBD would like the contractor to provide training on system use.
48. What is the approximate number of State staff to be trained?

Answer: HCBD anticipates training for six to 10 users.

49. Does the state of Montana foresee a need for the Contractor to manage inconsistencies across data streams? If inconsistencies exist, where are they and what is the expectation for the Contractor to resolve inconsistencies in the master identifier crosswalk?

Answer: HCBD is not clear on the meaning of ‘inconsistencies across data streams’. However, HCBD does expect the contractor to work with HCBD to validate information and aggregate to the correct member utilizing unique member identifiers.

50. What are the expected data delivery schedules? Weekly, daily, hourly, ad hoc?

Answer: Pharmacy data is delivered on a bi-weekly basis, all other data is received monthly.

51. How does the state of Montana anticipate transitioning historical data into the new system? 

Answer: HCBD anticipates the data to be transferred via electronic data file transfers.

52. Who will be the primary and secondary users of the platform? Are there other potential tiers for access (for example, specialized access may be granted to a third party to perform specific analyses of the data)?

Answer: Employees of HCBD will be the primary users of the health care data warehouse solution. Access should also be available to our actuary, who is a third party vendor and other vendors identified by HCBD.

53. Would the Contractor be expected to provide de-identified extracts for researchers (e.g., academic economists) to the state of Montana?

Answer: Yes, the potential exists for de-identified extracts to be conducted. HCBD expects that information be de-identified following HIPAA guidelines for de-identifying information.

54. What is the expected period of performance?

Answer: HCBD is unclear as to what ‘period of performance’ is in reference to for this RFI. As previously stated, the intent of the RFI is to gather data and will not be a vehicle leading to a direct contract.

55. Can you please confirm that the platform will require both FISMA at the moderate impact level and HIPAA compliance? 

Answer: HCBD requires a level of data security that is commiserate with the data being housed. HCBD requires HIPPA and HITECH compliance, and while not required, FISMA and SAS 70 Data Security and Confidentiality are preferred. 

56. Can you please confirm if this a new requirement or there is an incumbent? If yes, please provide incumbent details.

Answer: HCBD currently partners with MAHCP to provide our data warehousing services. 
57. What system(s) or service(s) currently provide the “central data warehouse” functionality described in RFI Section 2.1 –Background?

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 56.

58. Has the department allocated a budget for this solution?

Answer: Yes, the existing operating budget allocated to the operation of the current data warehouse solution.

59. RFI section 2.2.2.a describes several types of data that are gathered into the current data warehouse. Having some additional information would improve the quality of project dimension estimates we can provide in response. If available, please provide high-level information or rough estimates such as: 
· Current size of historical data, how many years of history this represents 

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 19.

· Data Interfaces, volumes/frequency 

Answer: Please refer to the response for questions 16 and 25.
· Number of current attributes / tables in the DHW 

Answer: MAHCP’s data warehouse solution has approximately 550 tables.

· Current technical platform 

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 62.

60. Please confirm the number of sources from which the vendor is expected to receive data. 

Answer: Currently, HCBD receives data from four sources. However, due to that nature of the health plan management, data sources can change as described in questions 36 and 76.
61. Estimated number of data sources?
Answer: Please refer to the response for question 60.

62. Please provide details of the technology platform currently in use to support your current data warehouse including but not limited to Hardware specification, Storage, Operating System, Relational Database Management System, Business Intelligence/Reporting tools.

Answer: MAHCP’s data warehouse solution uses a mutli-server environment comprised of servers with varying capacities. Their storage solution is both server and network based. All servers run Windows Server. MAHCP uses Microsoft SQL Server and their reporting environment consists of SQL Server Management Studio, Excel, Crystal Reports, and web applications.
	 
63. What is the anticipated go-live date for the Data Warehouse Project?

Answer: At this point in time, HCBD is in the information gathering stage to determine the availability of other solutions that would meet our data and reporting needs and if any of these solutions can improve the way we do business and manage our benefit plan.  In the event the RFI process leads to an RFP, implementation timelines will then be established.

64. Is there an implementation timeline in place?

Answer: Please refer to the response for question 63.

65. Is there a requirement for, The State of Montana, Health Care and Benefits, for an ICD10 integrated system?

Answer: HCBD expects the proposed solution to be compliant with ICD10.

66. Please confirm who processed 850,000 claims last year?

Answer: During the 2012 plan year, our claims were processed by Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Montana, New West Health Plan, and MedImpact.
67. For each external data source, are there data sharing agreements in place?
Answer: Yes.
68. Are there known data quality issues with each data store?
Answer: Yes and the current data aggregator has taken steps to remedy the issues with data quality.
69. If there are data quality issues, how are they tracked and remediated?
Answer: The current data aggregator has resolved existing data quality issues. HCBD does not have enough information on the data aggregator’s remediation process to elaborate.
70. Is a DQ solution part of the RFP response?
Answer: Yes, data quality and validation are expected to be part of the proposed solution. 
71. Is there an MDM solution in place?
Answer: Yes.
72. Is there a data governance board or processes in place?
Answer: No. 
73. Are all resources required to be onsite during implementation?
Answer: HCBD will require only the staff the contractor deems appropriate to implement the solution according to established timeframes. However, please recall that HCBD has not made a decision to replace our current data warehouse vendor and has issued the RFI to gather information on other available solutions that will meet our data and reporting needs. Should HCBD issue an RFP, all requirements will be listed in that document.
74. Will any person or system outside of the State need to access the data in the data warehouse?
Answer: Please refer to the response for question 52.
75. If any person or system outside of the State needs to access the data in the data warehouse, is a security model and data sharing agreements currently in place?
Answer: Yes. 
76. Are there net-new data sources being added to the data source list that are not currently part of the State’s information footprint?
Answer: Possibly. Due to the nature of health plan management, business processes are constantly evolving in ways to improve plan performance, member experience and service, and reduce costs. Improvement in these areas may result in a new data source. 
77. Could you clarify scalability requirements? The RFI mentions the need for the solution to accommodate new data sources, could these extend beyond the MT HCBD? Across other department or agencies within the state of Montana?
Answer: Yes, new data sources will extend beyond HCBD. HCBD receives data currently from external sources (i.e. Third Party Administrators, Pharmacy Benefit Manager, etc.). In addition, HCBD would like to incorporate human resource and payroll data, which would be obtained from another State of Montana division. For additional information on new data sources, please refer to questions 36 and 76.
78. Is there a backup plan in place for the data warehouse? If not, is one required as a response for the RFP?
Answer: Yes. 
79. What SLAs are established for the data warehouse and reporting/analytics?
Answer: HCBD has signed SLAs with MAHCP for the current data warehouse and reporting/analytics.
80. Will senior leadership be involved and available to respond to questions?
Answer: Yes.
81. Does the infrastructure exist to support the planned EDW implementation?
Answer: No. The contractor would be responsible for providing the infrastructure to support the data warehouse.
82. Is a cloud based implementation possible?
Answer: Yes. 
83. Is there a Disaster Recovery (DR) plan?
Answer: Yes.  
84. Will the RFP response be required to address DR?
Answer:  Yes. Understand that HCBD has not made a decision to replace our current data warehouse vendor and has issued the RFI to gather information on other available solutions that will meet our data and reporting needs. Should HCBD issue an RFP, all requirements will be listed in that document.
85. Is there an archive strategy in place? If not, is one required as a response to the RFP?
Answer: Yes, an archive strategy is in place and managed by the HCBD’s current data warehouse vendor. This question references an RFP, please recall that the HCBD has issued an RFI and has not determined if an RFP will result. 
86. What will be the required granularity of the data warehouse?
Answer: The data warehouse must be able to aggregate data from multiple sources and aggregate to the member level using unique identifiers. 
87. Will the contractor supply ongoing maintenance and reporting function or will there be a hand off at the end of implementation?

Answer: HCBD anticipates the contractor supplying ongoing maintenance and reporting support.

88. Are there any existing vendor contracts that could be leveraged/ updated as part of the implementation?

Answer: Yes.

89. What is the current training structure for the system?  Is virtual training or classroom training used more?

Answer: HCBD’s current data warehouse vendor provides training sessions upon request. Training is informal and designed upon request to meet the current need. Classroom training is provided more frequently then virtual training and is preferred by HCBD. Virtual training may be a challenge to implement in the State of Montana’s network infrastructure due constraining security configuration. 
 
90. Do the platforms used for data warehousing and analytics need to be from the same family of products (i.e. use an agile analytics tool for reporting and a different more cost effective data warehouse tool to save money)?

Answer: No.

91. How many pages can the RFI Response be?

Answer: There is no limit to the number of pages the RFI response can be.

92. Does the State expect to schedule demonstrations and/or oral presentations post RFI? If so, in approximately what time-frame?

Answer: Possibly; however, timeframes have not been established. HCBD may conduct demonstrations and oral presentations as part of any RFP that is issued.

93. Please discuss any other sources of historical health care data (i.e., other than those identified in RFI section 2.2.2.a) which might be included in the final RFP.

Answer: In addition to the data identified in the RFI, answers to member’s health risk assessment questionnaire will be included. 

94. Could the State provide additional information regarding the “invoices” described in RFI section 2.2.2.g? What is being invoiced; who is submitting them; approximately how many are submitted in a typical month? Could the State briefly describe its current resolution process?

Answer: HCBD is invoiced by our claims administrators (Cigna, CareHere, MedImpact, Delta Dental) for claims processed and paid. HCBD is invoiced at different intervals depending on the administrator. HCBD would provide a monthly summary of invoiced amounts by administrator to be used as control totals to validate completeness and accuracy of claims loaded into the data warehouse.

95. To assist the State’s analysts, providing support as described in RFI section 2.2.5 and 2.2.6.a, does the State envision the vendor providing onsite support staff, either full or part-time?

Answer: No, but the State would consider that option if offered.



